PLANNING COMMITTEE

Meeting - 5 June 2019

Present:

R Bagge (Chairman) J Jordan, D Anthony, M Bezzant, T Egleton, B Gibbs, P Hogan, M Lewis, Dr W Matthews and D Smith

4. MINUTES

The minutes of the Planning Committee held on 17 April and 14 May 2019 were approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Hogan declared a Personal Interest under the Council's Code of Conduct as a Member of Beaconsfield Town Council who have made representations about application 17/01763/OUT and PL/18/4882/FA. He reported that he had not attended any meetings when these applications were discussed by the Town Council nor expressed a view on the applications and had not pre-determined the applications.

Councillor Matthews declared a Personal Interest under the Council's Code of Conduct as a Member of Iver Parish Council who have made representations about application 17/02353/FUL. She had not attended any meetings when this application was discussed by the Parish Council nor expressed a view on the application and had not pre-determined the application.

Councillor Jordan declared a personal and prejudicial interest under the Council's Code of Conduct in application 17/01763/OUT as a close personal friend of the Inland Homes' Managing Director. She therefore left the room when this item was being discussed.

6. APPLICATIONS AND PLANS

Key to the following decisions:

ADV - Consent to Display Adverts; ARM - Approval of Reserved Matters; CI - Certificate of Lawfulness Issued; CON - Conservation Area Consent; D - Deferred; D (INF) - Deferred for Further Information; D (SV) - Deferred for Site Visits; D (PO) - Deferred for Planning Obligation; D (NEG) - Deferred for Negotiations; FCG - Consent for Tree Work; PCR TPO Part Consent/Part Refusal; LBC - Listed Building Consent; OP - Outline Planning Permission; P - Application Permitted; R - Refused or Rejected; R (AO) – Refused against Officer recommendation; RC - Removal of Condition; TC - Temporary Consent; TP - Temporary Permission; ULBC - Unconditional Listed Building Consent; UP - Unconditional Permission; VG - Variation Granted; W - Application Withdrawn.

(A) COMMITTEE DECISION REQUIRED FOLLOWING A SITE VISIT AND/OR PUBLIC SPEAKING:

		Decision	
Plan Number:	17/01763/OUT	Р	
Applicant:	Mr M Gilpin		
Proposal:	Outline Application for re-	Outline Application for redevelopment of Former Defence	
	School of Languages, Wilto	School of Languages, Wilton Park, Minerva Way, Beaconsfield	
	comprising 350 dwellings	comprising 350 dwellings	

Notes:

- 1. A site visit was undertaken by Members.
- 2. Speaking on behalf of the objectors Alison Wheelhouse and Dr Valerie Scott.
- 3. Speaking on behalf of the applicant Roger Rippon.

Councillor D Smith proposed that the Officer's recommendation be approved which was seconded by Councillor T Egleton and agreed at a vote.

RESOLVED:

That the Committee were minded to grant conditional permission, with the decision deferred for referral of the application to the Secretary of State. Final decision, including conditions, delegated to the Head of Planning and Economic Development subject to the prior completion of a Section 106 Planning Obligation. Any negotiation or changes to the Legal Agreement to be delegated to the Head of Planning and Economic Development with authorisation to refuse planning permission if an acceptable Legal Agreement is not completed within a timely manner for reasons relating to those matters addressed in the Legal Agreement.

		Decision	
Plan Number:	17/02353/FUL	D (INF)	
Applicant:	Link Park Heathrow LLP		
Proposal:	Part retrospective applicatio	Part retrospective application for use of site as B8 use and rail	
	borne storage and replacem	borne storage and replacement boundary fence and gate.	

Notes:

- A site visit was undertaken by Members.
- An officer updated the report as follows:-
- Clarification was sought on Network Rail's letter of representation of December 2018. Paragraph 20 on page 133 of the agenda reflected their latest representation.

Following discussion by Members and as a result of observations on their site visit Councillor R Bagge proposed that the application be deferred to enable Officers to obtain further information and a joint site visit by Officers and the London Borough of Hillingdon and including further discussions with the applicant on hours of use. This proposal was seconded by Councillor J Jordan and agreed at a vote.

RESOLVED that the application be deferred to enable Officers to carry out further investigations and obtain further information.

		Decision	
Plan Number:	PL/18/4882/FA	Р	
Applicant:	Logi Homes		
Proposal:	Erection of dormer wind	Erection of dormer window to front elevation	
NIster			

Notes:

- 1. A site visit was undertaken by Members.
- 2. Speaking on behalf of the objectors Brian Wark.

Councillor M Bezzant proposed that the application be permitted subject to the conditions in the officers report. This proposal was seconded by Councillor M Lewis and agreed at a vote.

RESOLVED that the application be permitted subject to the conditions outlined in the officer's report.

(B) COMMITTEE DECISION REQUIRED WITHOUT A SITE VISIT OR PUBLIC SPEAKING:-

None

(C) COMMITTEE OBSERVATION REQUIRED ON APPLICATIONS TO OTHER AUTHORITIES

None

(D) APPLICATIONS DETERMINED UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY

The Committee received for information a list of the applications dealt with under delegated authority by the Head of Sustainable Development.

7. ENFORCEMENT UPDATE

The Committee received a verbal report which set out the up-to-date position relating to Enforcement. The Enforcement Manager reported on the following:-

- Good progress had been made. The Technician role in Planning Enforcement had now been changed to a Planning Enforcement Officer and a member of staff had been recruited in April.
- A complete process review had been undertaken which identified areas of improvement which had resulted in changes to the standard template, acknowledgement letter, formal Notice process, template pack which was sent to the legal team for consultation and further streamlining to their internal processes.
- There was a new approach to Temporary Stop Notices which had proved successful in airport parking matters in South Bucks District Council in the first half of 2019.
- In terms of the shared service in 2018/19 513 new cases had been logged, which was a reduction in number possibly due to the improved triage service that had been adopted by the Team over the past year.
- Up until last year there had been a year on year increase in new SBDC enforcement investigations logged in the past 5 years which resulted in a 35% increase in SBDC cases over that period. The cases now logged in Chiltern and South Bucks District Council had become more balanced over that 5 year period with a 53/47 split between Chiltern and South Bucks District Council.
- All new allegations of breaches of planning control were logged and acknowledged within 5 working days.
- In 2018/19 in terms of formal notices issued, there have been 12 planning enforcement notices (most in the last 5 years), 1 section 215 notice and 5 Temporary Stop Notices.
- The Planning Inspectorate have determined 8 appeals against enforcement notices during the last financial year which has resulted in an 81.25% success rate at enforcement appeals with 18 appeals currently in progress.

- In 2018/19 the Team secured its first ever Proceeds of Crime Act Confiscation Order for CDC as part of an associated prosecution. The Order was made in the sum of £17,000 along with a £21,000 fine (6x 3500) and a £23,000 costs award.
- In 2018/19 770 cases were closed this financial year, resulting in a net reduction of cases of 257. The Team have managed to close more cases than it opened in April and May 2019.
- For 2019/20 improvements to the process would continue to be made with an Enforcement Notice review and Section 106 monitoring and enforcement program implemented.

Members welcomed the progress being made by the Enforcement Manager. Following a question, the Enforcement Manager agreed to provide a written response on the number of cases for South Bucks District Council which were currently open.

Members asked that they be updated on Enforcement matters every three months.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

8. PLANNING APPEALS AND SCHEDULE OF OUTSTANDING MATTERS

The Committee received for information a progress report which set out the up-to-date position relating to Planning Public Inquiries, Hearings and Court Dates.

RESOLVED that the report be noted

The meeting terminated at 6.32 pm